Improving Co-operation between the NGOs and the Public Sector and Strengthening the NGOs Democratic Participation Level

Call for Proposals TR 0301.03 issued by the CFCU
on 27th May 2005 with deadline of  11 August 2005
Frequently Asked Questions and Answers - I
 
Note: Many questions that have been received concerning this Call can be answered by carefully reading the Guidelines for Applicants.
1. How can I find the application package documents related to this programme? 
The Guidelines for Applicants and the Application form available for consultation on the following internet sites: http://www.deltur.cec.eu.int; http://www.cfcu.gov.tr; http://www.abgs.gov.tr: 
On the web-site of the Central Finance and Contracts Unit, http://www.cfcu.gov.tr: 

Choose your language, English or Turkish, on the main screen

Double click “Tenders” part to enter to the tenders page

Pick “grant” under “tender search” on the left side and  press enter

You will be able to access to all related documents of the programme at the bottom of the page

1.2.  On the web-site of the European Commission Delegation to Turkey, www.deltur.cec.eu.int, click “announcements” look for the announcment of the call for proposals to access all related documents to the programme.

1.3. On the web-site of the Secratariat General for the EU Affairs, www.abgs.gov.tr
, click “Main News” and look for the  announcment of the call for proposals to access all related documents to the programme. 

2. Which NGOs are eligible applicants?

As stated under section 2.1.1 of the Guidelines (Eligibility Criteria), an eligible non-governmental organisations is “an organisation that is not a state, national or international governmental institution and is not effectively controlled by such an institution. Applicant should demonstrate that it is independent of the state as regards to decision-making, budgetary control and the appointment of staff (including members of its controlling body)”  (footnote 2). In addition in order to be eligible  a non-governmental organisation has to fulfil all of the other eligibility criteria (i.e. be non-profit-making legal person; have its headquarters in Turkey (be Turkish legal entities); be directly responsible for the preparation and management of the action, not acting as an intermediary, have technical, managerial and financial capacity to implement the project to ensure its sustainability).

 3. Is Municipality an eligible applicant? 

No. As stated under Section 2.1.1 of the Guidelines (Eligiblity of applicants) “Municipal authorities and unions of municipal authorities” are not eligible as applicants but they can participate as partners or associates. 

4. Can an NGO be only associate, rather than partner, if its role does not require all the modalities related to partners (no money transfer, etc.) ?

Yes.  Please see Guidelines Section 2.1.2. for eligibility of partners.

5. Is a profit making company, confirming that it will not make profit from the project, an eligible applicant?  

As stated under Section 2.1.1 (Eligibility of applicants) of the Guidelines “applicants must be non-profit-making. Non-profit organisations for which the Turkish legislative framework permits profit making may also apply but should demonstrate that their operations are strictly non-profit making. These organisations must provide together with their application the Company Statute in which a provision prohibits distribution of the profit to shareholders. As an alternative the organisation should demonstrate, through an audit report covering the last three years, that its profit has never been distributed to the shareholders. In addition, the Board of Directors should declare that profit will not be distributed to shareholders in the future. “

6. Is “baro” (the body of lawyers) an eligible applicant ? 

Professional organizations and their federations and confederations are not eligible as applicants but they can participate as partner. Please see Guidelines Section 2.1.1 Eligibility of Applicants.

7. Could an organization apply with more than one project?  
Yes. “An applicant may submit more than one proposal”, however “An organisation (applying as applicant or partner) may not be awarded more than one grant under this call for proposals”. Please see Guidelines Section 2.1.3 Eligible Actions.

 

8. What kind of equipment can be bought within the project?
Equipment that is necessary for carrying out the project can be purchased, provided that all other conditions for eligible costs are also met. Please see Guidelines Section 2.1.4 Eligibility of Costs.

 9. Could we buy land or buildings?
No. “Purchases of land or buildings” are not eligible costs under this call for proposals. Please see Guidelines Section 2.1.4 Eligibility of Costs.

 10. May we purchase imported equipment?
Yes, provided that the equipment “originate in a EU Member State, Turkey, EU candidate countries, or countries benefiting from MEDA or CARDS programmes”. Please see Guidelines Section 2.1.4 Eligibility of Costs.

 11. Are the rent of premises/land eligible cost?
As long as they are essential for the implementation of the project and that all other conditions for eligible costs are also met. Please see Guidelines Section 2.1.4 Eligibility of Costs.

 

12. Could we pay salaries from the project?
Yes. “The cost of staff assigned to the action, corresponding to actual salaries plus social security charges and other remuneration-related costs” are part of the eligible costs provided that all conditions for eligible costs are met (e.g. be necessary for carrying out the action, etc.) Please see Guidelines Section 2.1.4 Eligibility of Costs.

 

13. Could we employ international experts for the implementation of project activities?
Yes. Cost  of international experts is part of the eligible costs. However “international experts (if any) has to be from EU member states, ,EU candidate countries, or countries benefiting from MEDA or CARDS, programmes”.  Please see Guidelines Section 2.1.4 Eligibility of Costs.

 
14. Is VAT on procurement of equipment and supplies an eligible cost?
No. “Taxes, including VAT” are not eligible costs. Please see Section in 2.1.4 of the Guidelines.

According to the  Framework Agreement (FWA) ruling the financial cooperation between European Commission and Turkey, signed on 14.05.2004, and transposed into the Turkish legal system via Law No:5303, which has been effective as of 15.04.2005, all EU funded projects are exempt from VAT.  To make use of this exemption, contractors/grant beneficiaries apply to the Ministry of Finance to obtain an exemption certificate. 

15. Can I subcontract the implementation of the project to a private company or other organization?

Subcontracting  is allowed for some activities “provided it is kept to a minimum and well justified” (Section 2.1.4 Eligibility of costs, Guidelines). However, applicants must “be directly responsible for the preparation and management of the action, not acting as an intermediary” (Section 2.1.1 Eligibility of applicants, Guidelines). 

16. May the lead body be the sub-contractor also?
No. This would create a conflict of interest between the beneficiary and the sub-contractor.


 

17. Would it be conflict of interests where the manager of the subcontractor is member of the management team of the leader NGO?
 Yes. This would create a conflict of interest.  See also answer to question 16. 

 
18. Will the CFCU be responsible for calling for tenders  when the project needs a sub-contracting?
No CFCU will not be responsible for any tendering process for a selected project. Tendering is a responsibility of the Applicants and partners and is to respect the EU procurement rules as stipulated in Annex IV to the Grant Application Form. For sub-contracting please also see answers to questions15-17. 
19. Should the translation of the supporting documents be made by a licensed interpreter?
No, that is not necessary. However, the applicant is responsible for the trustworthy translation of supporting documents.  Please see 2.2.1 Application form and supporting documents.

 

20. Are school family unions eligible applicants for this grant scheme?

As stated in  Section 2.1.1 of the Guidelines (Eligibility of applicants) applicants “ must be non-profit making legal persons, and be non-governmental organisations” .  A school family union would be eligible provided that it has legal personality separate from the school and it fulfils all other eligibility criteria under Section 2.1.1.  

 21. Can Public Universities be accepted as eligible partners or associates from Public sector?

In this call for proposals public sector refers to Turkish governmental institutions (state or provincial government or agencies). Non-profit making universities are eligible as partners (or associates) but as stated under Section 2.1.2 of the Guidelines (Partnerships and eligibility of partners) “Applicants MUST have at least one associate from the public sector (state or municipal) and/or one partner from the municipal sector”.  Therefore, applicants would still need to have at least one associate from the public sector and /or one partner from the municipal sector, even if they have public university as a partner or associate. 

22. May academic staff work and get salary/fee from a project funded by this grant scheme? 

Provided that they have the required qualifications and experience, academic staff may be assigned to a project as experts.  However, an expert can not work on a full time basis in 2 different jobs at the same time. In some cases academic staff may need to obtain official permission from their respective institutions to be employed in external projects. The project specific costs of all staff assigned to a project in terms of salaries/trips/per diems are eligible provided they correspond to the “usual paid by the beneficiary and/or his partners” and “the average market rates”.

23. We want to develop such a project …. It this an eligible project?

All projects aiming to achieve the objectives and priorities of the call for proposals are eligible. The sectors and themes and the types of action elaborated under section 2.1.3 of the Guidelines should be observed in preparing a project proposal. . Final decision regarding the awarding of the contracts will be given by the Contracting Authority following the recommendation of the evaluation committee. Please see section 2.3 “Evaluation and Selection of Applications”.

24. Is it necessary to attach proforma invoices for the Justification of Costs? 

No. At the stage of preparation/submission of applications no proforma invoices have to be submitted.   However a project budget should reflect market prices. Also, if selected, during the implementation phase  a project has to submit a final financial report at the end of the implementation period together with copy of invoices for all expenditures incurred for the purposes of the project.  

25. is it necessary that the contribution of the applicant and partners are visible in their bank accounts as active, or is only Declaration satisfactory? 

Declaration is satisfactory. The amount and percentage of the Beneficiary and/or partner’s co-financing should be no less than 10% of the total eligible costs of the action (see section 1.3. of the Guidelines) and should be clearly indicated in the “Sources of Funding” table of the budget.

26. What is the difference between a partner and an associate? Is it necessary to have both a partner and an associate from the public sector, or is it possible to have only one of those  from the public sector? 

As stated under Section 2.1.2 Partnerships and Eligibility of Partners, partners participate in designing and implementing the action, and the costs they incur are eligible in the same way as those incurred by the grant Beneficiary, while associates play a real role in the action but may not receive funding from the grant. Associates do not have to meet the eligibility criteria referred to in section 2.1.1.

Applicants MUST have at least one associate from the public sector (national or local) OR one partner from the municipal sector.  Having both is also possible but NOT necessary.
27. Could the ‘protection of environment’ theme also concern preservation of cultural heritage, like historical sites located in rural landscape? 

No.  The “protection of environment” theme addresses the preservation of natural resources. Preservation of cultural heritage is not covered by this call for proposals. Please see section 2.1.3. Eligible actions. 

28. Could “Geographically remote populations” be considered as socially excluded or vulnerable groups? 

The EU strategy for social inclusion identifies as vulnerable (social excluded) unemployed (especially long term unemployed and youth), single parents (especially women), older living alone, people with disabilities, ex-convicts, drug addicts, minorities, etc. 
A project proposal concerning “geographically remote populations” should clearly explain the problems these groups encounter and indicate the reasons why these should be taken as socially excluded or vulnerable groups. 

29. Is a Foundation accepted as an NGO and an eligible applicant for this Grant Scheme? 

In order to be eligible for this Grant Scheme a foundation has to fulfil all of the eligibility criteria included under Section 2.1.1 of the Guidelines (Eligibility Criteria).
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